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EVOLUTION OF

SANATORIUM ARCHITECTURE

By J. H. HOLBROOK,

Medical Superintendent, Mountain Sanatorium, Hamilton, Ontario

Sanatoria in Canada have a history of less than half o
century, the first Canadian sanatorium having been erected
in Muskoka in 1897, while the Mountain Sanatorium, Hamilton,
was established in 1906.

From the historical standpoint the chief interest in sana-
torium architecture comes not so much from the architecture
itself, as from the evidence that it presents of the gradual
improvement in facilities for the treatment of tuberculosis.

It is my purpose, therefore, to give a brief description of
this gradual progress in the type of architecture of Mountain
Sanatorium and to show that this continuous improvement in
building construction ran parallel with the demand for more
scientific hospital care.

The beginning of sanatorium treatment followed fairly
closely upon the discovery of the tubercle bacillus by Koch in
1882, and came with the first sign of a spirit of hope that the
ravages of the great white plague could be controlled, through
the simple and natural expedients of fresh air and intensive
feeding, with the chief reliance being placed on milk and eggs.

Today we place Rest first in order of importance, but at that
stage the public was most impressed by the surprising gains in
weight that had already been made by patients living in the
open air with only a tent for shelter, and so it is not surprising
that the first institutional buildings were of the shelter or shack
type, with facilities for living twenty-four hours of every day
in the fresh air.

And so our first buildings for treatment of patients were the
men’s and women’s shacks of cheap wooden construction with
the fronts open to the weather. While the fronts were open,
and faced south, a measure of protection from winter storms
was provided by the erection of wooden doors, hinged to the
top beam of this front opening and hooked to the ceiling. This
made it possible, in case of severe snow-storms, to unhook and
drop the doors, but the faith in fresh air and the institutional
morale, made it possible for many winters to count on the
fingers of one hand the number of times these doors were
lowered.

Near these two frame shacks was a dining-room to which
all patients went for their meals, for nursing, in the modern
sense, except in the event of some serious emergency, such as
a hemorrhage, was considered quite unnecessary.

Usually, also, during the day, at least two additional trips
were made to this dining-room for lunches, at which time milk
and eggs were freely provided.

From the outset an after-dinner rest hour was compulsory
but once it was over, the recreation hall was available for all
patients, and it was only after bitter experience with hemor-
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rhages or other complications that the need for special nursing
facilities and for an infirmary building, where this could be
provided during both day and night, came to be recognized.

And so the early idea of a Sanatorium was that it should be
a place where the patient would be provided with a chance
to get back to a “close to nature” existence, and the changes
that have followed have arisen from the gradual realization
that while fresh air is beneficial and nourishing food is neces-
sary, yet the chief essential of treatment is rest to the diseased
part; and that nursing care, to provide this need, is just as
essential for the tuberculous, as for patients suffering from any
other acute illness, and must be maintained for a much longer
time than with the more acute diseases.

At first it was thought that every form of surgery for the
tuberculous should be avoided, if at all possible, but gradually
it has come to be realized, not only that surgery for non-
tuberculous emergencies was necessary, but the surprising
developments of recent years have demonstrated the use of
surgery to the diseased area, either to procure more complete
rest, or to compress areas of disease and especially of cavita-
tion, with the result that, in addition to the facilities for routine
fresh air treatment, it has been necessary to add all the facili-
ties for surgical treatment that are to be found in any modern
general hospital.

As a result it is now generally agreed that the requirements
of a modern sanatorium are the same as those of any other
modern hospital with the additional requirement of special
facilities for the provision of fresh air to all wards.

As a matter of fact, chest surgery while of recent develop-
ment, is very highly technical, ranking with brain surgery in
its need for all modern facilities, and, in addition, many
patients under treatment for bone or joint tuberculosis are
immobilized on splints or are otherwise unable to move them-
selves, thus increasing the need for the protection of a fire-
proof building. Added to this it is necessary to have adequate
steam for sterilizing, together with the combination of heat for
surgical wards and fresh air for all wards.

With this background it becomes very easy to understand
the reasons for the gradual evolution from the simple and
inexpensive frame buildings, of the early days, to the modern
hospital type of building, with the added factors of set-back
verandahs and south-eastern exposure to ensure a maximum
of fresh air and sunlight.

To illustrate this gradual development | am first presenting
the ground floor plan of the shack for 12 men, built in 1906,
and a frame building for 20 children, the nucleus of the Preven-
torium built in 1910, and will follow with illustrations of two
of the modern buildings.
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